

Oklahoma Health Care Authority

The Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) values your feedback and input. It is very important that you provide your comments regarding the proposed rule change by the comment due date. Comments can be submitted on the OHCA's [Proposed Changes Blog](#).

OHCA COMMENT DUE DATE: February 18, 2020

The proposed policy changes are currently in effect as Emergency Rules and must be promulgated as Permanent Rules. The proposed policy was presented at Tribal Consultation on July 2, 2019, the Medical Advisory Committee on July 18, 2019 and the OHCA Board of Directors on August 21, 2019. For the permanent rulemaking process, this proposed change will be presented at a Public Hearing scheduled for February 19, 2020. This proposal will also be presented to the OHCA Board of Directors on March 18, 2020.

Reference: APA WF 19-12

SUMMARY:

High Risk Obstetrical Services (HROB) - The proposed revisions will add "family practice physician - obstetrics" (FP/OB) as a new provider type under the Enhanced Services for Medically High Risk Pregnancies policy. This policy change will address and improve access to care for obstetrical related services in rural Oklahoma areas. Further revisions will update policy to reflect current business practices.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

The Oklahoma Health Care Authority Act, Section 5007 (C)(2) of Title 63 of Oklahoma Statutes; and the Oklahoma Health Care Authority Board.

RULE IMPACT STATEMENT:

STATE OF OKLAHOMA OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY

TO: Maria Maule
Legal Services

FROM: Carmen Johnson
Federal and State Authorities

SUBJECT: Rule Impact Statement
APA WF # 19-12

A. Brief description of the purpose of the rule:

Policy will be added to allow Family Practice Physicians - Obstetrics (FPOB) to evaluate and treat a subset of diagnosis presently allowed to board certified/board eligible Obstetrician/Gynecologist. The FP/OB will be required to meet certain criteria such as board certification, residency training in obstetrics, and be credentialed at a hospital for obstetrical care. This rule will expand access to care in rural areas of Oklahoma. In addition, revisions will include updating policy to reflect current business practices.

B. A description of the classes of persons who most likely will be affected by the proposed rule, including classes that will bear the cost of the proposed rule, and any information on cost impacts received by the agency from any private or public entities:

Board eligible/board certified Family Practice Physicians with sufficient training in obstetrics along with pregnant SoonerCare members will be most affected by this rule. This rule change should not place any cost burden on private or public entities.

C. A description of the classes of persons who will benefit from the proposed rule:

The proposed rule change will benefit SoonerCare pregnant women located in rural Oklahoma areas who require enhanced services for medically high risk pregnancies in addition to services for uncomplicated maternity cases.

D. A description of the probable economic impact of the proposed rule upon the affected classes of persons or political subdivisions, including a listing of all fee changes and, whenever possible, a separate justification for each fee change:

The proposed rule will not have an economic impact on any political subdivision or require their cooperation in implementing or enforcing the rule.

E. The probable costs and benefits to the agency and to any other agency of the implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule, the source of revenue to be used for implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule, and any anticipated affect

on state revenues, including a projected net loss or gain in such revenues if it can be projected by the agency:

Agency staff has determined that the proposed changes would potentially result in a combined federal and state spending of \$154,549.10 total with \$52,515.78 in state share for SFY2020.

- F. A determination of whether implementation of the proposed rule will have an economic impact on any political subdivisions or require their cooperation in implementing or enforcing the rule:

The proposed rule changes will not have an economic impact on any political subdivision or require their cooperation in implementing or enforcing the rule changes.

- G. A determination of whether implementation of the proposed rule will have an adverse effect on small business as provided by the Oklahoma Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act:

The agency does not anticipate that the proposed rule changes will have an adverse effect on small businesses.

- H. An explanation of the measures the agency has taken to minimize compliance costs and a determination of whether there are less costly or non-regulatory methods or less intrusive methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule:

The agency has taken measures to determine that there are no other legal methods to achieve the purpose of the proposed rule changes. Measures included a formal public comment period and tribal consultation.

- I. A determination of the effect of the proposed rule on the public health, safety and environment and, if the proposed rule is designed to reduce significant risks to the public health, safety and environment, an explanation of the nature of the risk and to what extent the proposed rule will reduce the risk:

The proposed rule should not have any effect on the public health, safety or environment. The proposed rule is not designed to reduce significant risks to the public health, safety or environment.

- J. A determination of any detrimental effect on the public health, safety and environment if the proposed rule is not implemented:

The agency does not anticipate any detrimental effect on the public health, safety or environment if the proposed rule is not implemented.

- K. The date the rule impact statement was prepared and if modified, the date modified:

Prepared date: November 25, 2019

Modified date: January 8, 2020

RULE TEXT:

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 1. PHYSICIANS

317:30-5-22.1. Enhanced services for medically high risk pregnancies

(a) **Enhanced services.** Enhanced services are available for pregnant women eligible for SoonerCare and are in addition to services for uncomplicated maternity cases. Women deemed high risk based on criteria established by the ~~OHCA~~Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) must receive prior authorization for medically necessary enhanced benefits which include:

(1) prenatal at risk antepartum management;

(2) a combined maximum of five (5) fetal non stress test(s) and biophysical profiles (additional units can be prior authorized for multiple fetuses)with one (1) test per week beginning at ~~32~~thirty-two (32) weeks gestation and continuing to ~~38~~thirty-eight (38) weeks; and

(3) a maximum of three (3) follow-up ultrasounds not covered under OAC 317:30-5-22(b)(2).

(b) **Prior authorization.** To receive enhanced services, the following documentation must be received by the OHCA Medical Authorizations Unit for review and approval:

(1) ~~ACOGA~~ comprehensive prenatal assessment from the American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologist (ACOG) or other comparable comprehensive prenatal assessment; and

(2) ~~appropriate~~Appropriate documentation supporting medical necessity from a ~~Board—Eligible/Board—Certified~~board eligible/board certified Maternal Fetal Medicine (MFM) specialist, ~~or a Board—Eligible/Board—Certified~~board eligible/board certified Obstetrician-Gynecologist (OB-GYN) ~~or~~, or a board eligible/board certified Family Practice Physician who has completed an Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical

Education (ACGME) approved residency. The medical residency program must include appropriate obstetric training, and the physician must be credentialed by the hospital at which they provide obstetrical services in order to perform such services. The documentation must include information identifying and detailing the qualifying high risk condition. Non-MFM obstetrical providers requesting enhanced services are limited to a specific set of diagnoses as outlined on the OHCA website (www.okhca.org).

(c) **Reimbursement.** When prior authorized, enhanced benefits will be reimbursed as follows:

(1) Antepartum management for high risk is reimbursed to the primary obstetrical provider. If the primary provider of obstetrical care is not the MFM and wishes to request authorization of the antepartum management fee, the treatment plan must be signed by the primary provider of OB care. Additionally, reimbursement for enhanced at risk antepartum management is not made during an in-patient hospital stay.

(2) Non stress tests, biophysical profiles and ultrasounds [in addition to those covered under OAC 317:30-5-22(a)(2) subparagraphs (A) through (C)] are reimbursed when prior authorized.

(3) Reimbursement for enhanced at risk antepartum management is not available to physicians who already qualify for enhanced reimbursement as state employed physicians.

PART 3. HOSPITALS

317:30-5-42.11. Observation/treatment

(a) Payment is made for the use of a treatment room associated with outpatient observation services. Observation services must be ordered by a physician or other individual authorized by state law. Observation services are furnished by the hospital on the hospital's premises and include use of the bed and periodic monitoring by hospital staff. Observation services must include a minimum of ~~eight~~ (8) hours of continuous care. Outpatient observation services are not covered when they are provided:

(1) On the same day as an emergency department visit.

(2) Prior to an inpatient admission, as those observation services are considered part of the inpatient DRG.

(3) For the convenience of the member, member's family or provider.

(4) When specific diagnoses are not present on the claim.

(5) As part of another service, i.e. for post operative monitoring; recovery after diagnostic testing or concurrently with therapeutic services such as chemotherapy.

(b) Payment is made for observation services in a labor or delivery room. Observation services must include a minimum of eight (8) hours of continuous care. Specific pregnancy-related diagnoses are required. ~~During active labor, a fetal non-stress test is covered in addition to the labor and delivery room charge.~~

DRAFT